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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “"EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on
GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required
to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website in order to
obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this annual report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual
report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief:— (1) the information contained
in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this annual
report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this annual
report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Corporate information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian

Xu Shu Yi

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pao Ping Wing
Tam Kwok Hing
Lo King Man

COMPANY SECRETARY
Tong Tsz Kwan

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Hung Yung Lai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hung Yung Lai
Tong Tsz Kwan

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)
Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

AUDITORS

K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited
Room 1101, 11/F, Tai Yau Building
181 Johnston Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
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Corporate information

AN
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Chairman’s statement
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), | would like to present
herewith the 2008 Annual Report of the Group.

“Company”) and its subsidiaries

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The projects and products following the transition of the Group
during the year have been launched in provinces and cities
such as Shandong, Zhejiang, Yunnan, Shanghai, Hebei, Shanxi
and Xinjiang. Both of our two strategic cooperation customers
are working closely with the Group, one of which has entered
into a 3-year strategic cooperation agreement; then entered
a mutual intention that the Group and another key customer
to establish bundle cooperation by the end of last year. The
market share of the first generation of products after the
Group's transition has been continuously increasing, while the
new products of the second generation are undergoing closed
development as per client’s request. After the official launch
of the products, it is expected that they will arouse relatively
notable echo in the market. Due to the huge impact brought
by the global financial tsunami to the financial industry of the
PRC, the contemplated product promotion campaigns and
system upgrade contract have been delayed accordingly or
partly downsized, which led to a significant drop in the sales
of the Group and caused the losses for the year. However, the
Group considers the losses during the year are temporary and
are not related to the Group's products, market and customers.
In particular, the two products which help banks to further
enhance their risk management and reduce operation and
management costs would be attractive to the customers and
the market and the demand for this product has changed from
gradual adoption to an urgent one.
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Chairman’s statement
TERES

Banking Business

The bank capital risk management product of the Group, a
core business in banking industry, continued to top the market
share amongst the domestic players. Deeply affected by the
financial tsunami, the banks will, to a larger degree, enhance
their capital risk management. Orders received by the Group
for such product are expected to increase constantly in the
coming years and the market share will surge rapidly. New
business and products related to payment industry, especially
our cooperation with the two major customers, are under
comprehensive development, while the sales of integrated
version of MIS-POS under RUNPOS also experienced relatively
great growth.

Education Business

The Group has entered into a 3-year strategic cooperation
agreement with China Construction Bank Zhejiang Branch
with regard to One-stop Bank-college Express, which is a new
product of the Group. The key target of the first year is to
thoroughly promote the product in Zhejiang and to promote
nationwide application in the following two years. The research
and development of this product is coming close to an end,
with qualitative changes in terms of concentration, stability and
multi-functionality when compared to the original Bank-college
Express, and it is expected to lead to further growth in the
Group's efficiency.
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Chairman’s statement
FTERESE

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group will further strengthen the research and
development of various varieties of innovative functions of
bank capital risk management products and continuously
the application of RUNPOS series products in different fields.
Industries that have commenced such application include:
education, social security, highway, tourism, tobacco, electricity
and telecommunication, while the application of the system
on the project of China National Petroleum Corporation refuel
card was added this year. Well-proven by practice, RUNPOS
has enormous market potential and the key is to work closely
with banks to speed up the pace of promotion and application
in different fields. Each strategic cooperation partner of the
Group is constantly enhancing the efforts and depth in our
cooperation. The Group believes that our cooperation with the
major customers will be stable and long-lasting. This will be
an important factor that guarantees a steady growth of the
Group's revenue, which will also lift up the value of the Group’s
brand.

The Group will continue to endeavor to implement measures to
broaden sources of income and reduce expenditure, especially
to put more efforts in broadening sources of income and
innovation, and continue to strengthen the risk precautions and
on-going monitoring mechanism to prevent risk in advance.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to all the shareholders who have been rendering their support
to the Group, and all the staff who have been so dedicated
and have been working so hard. In addition, | would also like
to express my sincere thanks to the customers, cooperation
partners, suppliers and bankers for their confidence and trust in
the Group.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

27 March 2009
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Management discussion and Analysis
EEREBNWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (“the financial
year"”), the Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
RMB18,214,000, representing a decrease of 39% as
compared to last year (last year turnover were approximately
RMB29,719,000).

B %5 O R

AEBTEEFEARKNE ([HE])LEH
BMHEARSRENEE  BRRHE R IR -

 ECEENFT_A=+—BULEE(R
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18,214,0007T WA F R B 2 4939% (= F
TLEFHEWRALN ARK29,719,0007T) ©

Turnover of the Group comprises of: REEMNEEHBRE:
Turnover
=E ]

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Sales of software B GE & 980 3,577
Sales of hardware ERE RS 2,995 10,015
Maintenance and other services income HENETRFUWA 14,239 16,127
18,214 29,719

The Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB4,240,000 for the financial year, a
significant change from net profit to net loss as compared
to last year (net profit for last year was approximately
RMB1,195,000). Decrease in turnover is one of the factors
leading to the change from net profit to net loss.

We will continue trying our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control. With the products of our group
becoming more mature in the market and the effective cost
control, we expect that financial results of the group will be
further improved in the coming year.

REERERFEHCRBBFEBORAR
#4,240,0007C - A A F RENFAFN IS F20F
BEETEARE (ZZTLEFAFIOAR
#1,195,000) < HEW AR D - HZEHAHEF
BEENTIERE-
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Management discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB16.8 million (2007: RMB18 million) which
bear interest at rate of Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered
Rate plus 2.75% per annum.

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year (2007:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB2.8 million. (2007: RMB8.6

million)

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2008 was approximately 102%
(2007: 137%).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, or significant investments
during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Saved as disclosed on note 4 of the notes to the financial
statements, no segmental information is presented for
the Group as the Group conducts its business within one

geographical and business segment.
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Management discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 90 employees
(2007: 80 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB7 million (2007: RMB6.9
million).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”
respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2007: Nil).

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS

Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on
this.
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Management discussion and Analysis
EEEBNwmR DM

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE FEF E /B BB R
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BE-2B/\F HE-TTLE HEZTERE HECZTRE HE-TINF
t=ZB=t-8 +ZA=+-B +zZA=+-B +FZA=+-8B +ZA=t-8
LEE I35 ILERE LFE ILERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ANEBTT ARBTT ANEETT ANRBTL

Turnover HEWA 18,214 29719 21377 11,276 40,303
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders ~ FRREfE ([&18) /&7 (4,240) 1,195 (16,151) (37,221) (2,346)
Total assets EELE 25,380 32,687 27,160 41,894 66,873
Total liabilities afEmfE (25,948) (44,731) (41,713) (40,595) (28,631)
Net (iabilties)/assets (Bff)/BEFE (568) (12,044) (14,553) 1,299 38,242
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS TEHERREF

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 HEZZZEN\F+-_A=-+—HIEFE £&
December 2008 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and BT EHEFLEFEGNESHE LIS

customers are as follows: Aok

Purchases BERE

— the largest supplier 32% —&AHRER 32%
— five largest suppliers combined 84% —AARHEEREH 84%
Sales 5 & 5

— the largest customer 24% —&KREF 24%
— five largest customers combined 53% —hAREP&H 53%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder ZBH HEMNBEAXLESTNHEES AAQ A
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%  JEZAN5% A ERIERIBEER - M ERN il E Bt e
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major B HBEELS-

suppliers or customers stated above.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management

EEREAREERBCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 64, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 20 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 10 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group's macro-
strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 55, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Xu, Shu Yi, aged 44, a Director of our Group. Mr. Xu
acquired professional accountant qualification in 1995 in
China. Mr. Xu has over 25 years’ company financing and
executive director’s experience in various industries like real
estate developing, hotel industry and food-manufacturing
industry. He is now taking charge of the Group's financial
strategy and planning of our Group.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management

EENGREEBCRERE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITING COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, aged 61, an independent non-
executive director of the Group and Chairman of the
Auditing Committee. Mr. Pao was named independent non-
in 1987 and
was nominated Justice of Peace in Hong Kong in the same

executive director of Oriental Press Group Ltd.

year. Mr. Pao used to work for three public listed companies
in Hong Kong as their independent non-executive director,
which provide him with abundant experience of over 20 years
concerning this position.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 61, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.

Mr. Lo, King Man, aged 71,
director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in academic

an independent non-executive

administration at the University of Hong Kong and became
deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1986.
He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong Academy for
performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of Peace in Hong
Kong, and he has an extensive record of public service. He has
also served on the governing or executive bodies of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. He was appointed
an independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang
Holding Int’l Ltd.

Principal of Administration of the Canton International Summer

in September 1994. Mr. Lo is currently the
Music Academy. He also serves as a consultant to Henderson

Land on the West Kowloon Cultural District Development
project.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management

EEREAREERBCEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Loong Cheong, aged 62, is the Senior Consultant
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in April 2004, he was
responsible for the sales and management, etc in certain listed
companies. Regarding to the trading and business networks
in the PRC, he has distinct and professional knowledge and
experiences. After his joining, with respect of his experiences
and strategies in the PRC, he has important contribution to the
market development of the new products.

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 29, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. He holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree in Finance from University
of Southern Queensland. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and the member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in June 2007,
he has accumulated over several years of accounting, auditing
and financing experience. He is now responsible for accounting
and company secretarial duties.

Mr. Qiu, Lei, aged 38, is the General Manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. He graduated from School of
Machano-Electronic Engineering of Xidian University. Before
joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Qiu was employed in China
Zhenhua Group. Mr. Qiu had occupied the sales director of
Singlee Software (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. and the commercial director
of Hangzhou Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. etc, with rich
experiences in financial industry.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 34.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.
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Report of the directors
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2008, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company. (2007: Nil)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, shareholders (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or, directly, or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any other
members of the Group or substantial shareholders as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AR 3

REBEBRZE-NN—FREDE) RARAR
AABERAR Ao EEAHIKET
BER-RZZZNF+_A=+—H ARQFR
BAHRETHRRZEFERH (ZTFTLF 8) -

TERRZESFER

RARRERMEEFRITRASMA R_F
NEFETZA=+T—HB UTRIEREZESF LB
EBIZEXVEDSE2 N B350 1) MR SLZR [ AR A AR
BRARRRMDHAAEROWERABRR (K
RAEFHTHRARHBIN KERXBEERH
R IABEBR TR AREEAEMKE R F
BRAE ERBZE(ERBAEEZ5% %
REBEEFLHPEGRDIIFEI6HATFTENE LM
Frac 8%

o A

\

Number of shares held

BFEROBE

Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

RERER B3, Rz ER Ha HRE FERtTESL

Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
EmiEm (note 1)
(Btat1)

Great Song Enterprises Limited Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
5 E R (notes 1 and 2)
(BtiF1k2)

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
BERME ST A B R (notes 2 and 4)
(Btet2k4)

Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
TH¥B L A B R (notes 2 and 3)
(Krat253)

Mdm Iu Pun Family interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
B 22+ KB (note 5)
(Kt7E5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great Song Enterprises
Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 337,855,000 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 337,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be
interested in the same 337,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be
interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or taken
to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.66 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERTHRAH R SER

RZZZNFTZA=+—H REZHFLHPE
GRBIEXVERD 87 R E 8N R ME AN A Al K i
RABBARAREERITRAHN A AR HE
AR RARREE (E&E R B 5 LB EHEMFEXV
#B(ERAPIEST1E) ) R - R MME
FH D (BREERERE S LB GIINZ
HFHENEBIEREERENEERER) - IR
BESRIERAIEI2EATLRARAE
FHELMEBERBAER ETHRANES 465
5.661RZA RS AN A7) K B XX A e #E 25 Ko FE R 0
T

RRTFRAD :

alj

Number of shares held

BFERHEA
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng 50/ EmER HR Br BEREXBEIW
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
RREITE SR EE RS (note 1)
(Biat1)

HREEA B D

Shares in associated corporation:

Number of ordinary shares held
in Goldcorp Industrial Limited

(note 2)
# Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEBRREE

(Brat2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng 54 EmER Ha BRE FAEREXBESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Personal interest 1 - 50.9%

RRENE T AL (EPNE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Contd)

Notes:

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2008 composed of 2 ordinary shares. Goldcorp Industrial Limited held
337,855,000 Shares in the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 27 August 2001, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to employees (including Directors of the Company)
of the Group and other persons who, in the sole discretion
of the board of the Directors, have contributed to the Group
(“Participants”). The Scheme enables the Company to grant
share options to Participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Scheme would be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
After the listing of the shares on GEM, the total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue upon
completion of placing, capitalisation issue and say other shares
to be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the listing of the shares on GEM. According
to the Scheme, the total number of shares available for issue is
66,320,000 shares which represents 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME(Cont'd)

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share to 163 employees
(including three executive directors) of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price HK$0.58 immediately before the
day on which options were granted.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme at an
exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to 2 chief executives of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price HK$0.14
immediately before the day on which options were granted.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

Blestd (e

BRELHEFBOT

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as  granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period at 1 January 2008 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2008
HE-ZENE HE-ZEINE
-f-H tTZA=t-H
Eiid FRRH ERETE ERBHE EREAH Eiid
EZRERLE s BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE REHE
Options granted on 8 April 2002
REZE_EMANBRY 2 ERE
Cui Jian 7 September 2002 to 3,180,000 - - - - 3,180,000
7 April 2012
ER “ZE-fNAtAZE
“2-"£MALH
Continuous contract 7 September 2002 to 1,020,000 - - - 1,020,000 -
employees 7 April 2012
(other than directors)
FEANER “ZRCENALEE
(BRI “E-—EMALA
Options granted on 9 October 2007
REBBLETANBRYEZERE
Chan Kam Fai 8 April 2008 to 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
8 October 2017
[Ri51E “ZE)\FEANRE
“E-tETANA
Continuous contract 8 April 2008 to 41,550,000 - - - 6,730,000 34,820,000
employees 8 October 2017
(other than directors)
FEANER “ZZ)\FEANRE
(EZR) “EtETANA
51,750,000 - - - 7,750,000 44,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The directors consider it inappropriate to value the options
as a number of factors critical for the valuation cannot be
determined accurately. Any valuation of the options based on
various speculative assumptions would be meaningless and
misleading. Therefore the directors believe that the cost for
disclosing the value of options does not justify for the benefits
it provides.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
directors, chief executives, or their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)
or which were required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.66 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2008 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes
with the Company or may compete with the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2008 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian

Xu Shu Vi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Pao
Ping Wing will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years from their
appointment dates.

Each of the independent non-executive directors was appointed
for a period of two years commencing from their appointment
dates.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the financial
statements, the connected transactions are exempted from
the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
were audited by K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

)

The board of directors of the Company believes that corporate AR R EZEE G REDLEEAARNRAFT KNG
governance is essential to the success of the Company and has - 3 B HREVSIBIE - VBRI 2 IZEN D
adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of %%&4 &ﬂﬁ?%%iﬁﬁéllﬁﬁiim%ﬁguﬁﬁ
corporate governance is maintained. The Company has applied EHMZEEAFE R TBIPH &+ R 2 16
the principles and complied with the requirements set out in

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG code”)

contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BERETZEERS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding HE-_ZZTN\F+_-_A=+—HIt+ @A
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months ' AR FIEEFAIZER EMRAIZE5.48%5.67
ended 31 December 2008 as set out in GEM Listing Rules 1§ (ER)EBMEZETESFLISGZIRE A
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all ARBEEE2EESEELHEBETER AQ AT F
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non- HEEEMAETEBESETELRSAE
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding ZERIERTE -

the securities transactions by Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS =

The board of directors of the Company comprises: RAREFZKEBIE:

Executive Directors © Hung Yung Lai HITEE AR N1
Cui Jian OER
Xu Shu Yi REFE

Independent Non-executive : Pao Ping Wing BUIBITEE CORmE

Directors : Tam Kwok Hing COHKBEE

Lo King Man O ERX
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd) BEEE (8
During the year, seven full board meetings were held and the FR  ARFABLAEREEZEL:E SEF
attendance of each director is set out as follows: R E R
Number of
Board meetings
attended Attendance
in 2008 rate
—BENF
HEEEEER
Name of director EEHE RE HE =
Hung Yung Lai AR L1 717 100%
Cui Jian EE 5/7 71%
Xu Shu Yi IRETE 4/7 57%
Pao Ping Wing MRS 6/7 86%
Tam Kwok Hing L E 4/7 57%
Lo King Man ERX 4/7 57%

The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for the period.
Although the Group had net liabilities as at 31 December 2008,
the Board does not foresee any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the
going concern approach in preparing the financial statements.

EXeHTEERERERE BITAMBE
iﬁ&{%%ﬁaﬁgﬁ’aﬁx&%% EEXEY
BRABT UEEHUENBREREZAEE
TFE URELEENENRERTMER /L
BRMSRELG AP EERERAUREE
BEBE-

EETAAEESEMBRBRESIKRENR
B LEE MR R % B A & E B B
AERFERRERE-BEARNEEAR_ZTTN
F+-A=+—HERFEE" %%AITE
REMERATHERZ@HAEENFELE
AR TERER At B DARARE
REELERRER -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Mr. Chan Kam Fai respectively.
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their appointment
dates. The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from the three Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that
all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
within the definition of the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was formed in November 2005
to review the overall remuneration of Directors. One meeting
was held during the year and attendance of each member is set
out as follows:

EFERATHAE

ARRBEERITHRAAE D B R R&ELE & & MR
HIEAL  TREETHAZNACR SN &
MBS B RS ASE - I RIRBIEMREAEK - E
ZEEIFAERE TR BRESSABLE
B MITRAKAERE TRIDAESMEREARASE
B ST EEER -

BUFATES

BBEUIFFATEENEHHZTERRES R
ME-RRACEREZ=RBIUFATESER
ERIER EHR E‘1%5 091\%?’*&2@?5’321&
BRE-BEFGCHAHREIBLIE AT
ﬁ%?%i#*ﬂfT%%ﬂ%E”%Wﬁmfﬁ/ﬁ\”ﬁﬁﬁ\m
2B AL

EEF

HMEEERUN _TERFI—A BER
HEHERETM AT 2SR RMREKE
B R

i)

Number of

meetings Attendance

attended rate
Name of member RE HESBRE =
Hung Yung Lai, Chairman AEELIE - £ 171 100%
Pao Ping Wing R R 1/1 100%
Tam Kwok Hing H B 1/1 100%
Lo King Man EEX 1/1 100%
At the meeting held, remuneration of directors for the REH L SRECHEEFTIETIHEE
Company was reviewed and discussed. B -
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION ZE TN &

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the FR AR &) (% BAH £ B B[S € 5H A B 75
Company's auditors, K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited, is set out FTAR QA AB ST :

as follows:

Fees paid/
payable
Services rendered RENRE e/ EREA
HKD'000
BT T
Audit services ZH RS 300
Non audit services i.e. taxation IEZB R (BIF) 0
300

INTERNAL CONTROL A IR B 1=

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness F RN  ANAFEBZAEEZ NIPEITRFH
and adequacy of the Group's internal control system during ARMEMIERE - AQE FHEFHEE 5w
the year. The Company convened meetings periodically to  FFESE - EEEIERARELE  URKEKRERED
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk - Z2ER A AEBRNDEERF 2 T BEHE
management functions. The Directors are of the view that the B EARHT HWNHANRSEM - AEBEBES
key areas of the Group's internal control system are reasonably K25 NHITE S K RE—PREALAEB 2R
implemented with rooms for improvement. The Group will use  ZFESIE X475 -

its endeavor to implement changes in order to further improve

the Group's internal control system.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
The Company has established an audit committee on 27 ARRRZZTE—FNA-F+LtBARKIEZE
August 2001, with terms of reference in compliance with the B& ' WiZAI¥R ETRAIE5.2825.3318K IR

}

requirements as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM FUEZEHETEREHE -BZZENFE
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are B @i RERANEENTE2HEF LK

to review and supervise the financial reporting process and EPEEIFHIE - W MEFSREZZENER -
internal control procedures of the Group and to provide advice

t

puly

and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three ARAFHBEZEZESCBRIE =B IEHTT
Independent Non-executive Directors. Four meetings were held FH - EBZZESNRFEARNRT TS E XEXE\I
during the year and the attendance of each member is set out AJH BRI T
as follows:
Number of

meetings Attendance

attended rate
Name of member RE HESBERE =
Mr. Pao Ping Wing MR ES 4/4 100%
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lo King Man ERX 4/4 100%

During the meetings held, financial results of the Company was R&& L S B BH AN EE NP IEREHLETT
reviewed and discussed. BENESIK

30 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE



Independent auditor’s report

B % B RS

R X BRI 836 FH AT A TR 8]
K .M. CHOI & AU YEUNG LIMITED

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 34 to 108, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

BB RS
BHAERG (RE)ROERATKRRE
(REREZELMHA L BR2A])

AIZEED (AT R [HF]) D EZFE34E108
HEFEz# M (RE)BROERRQR ([E
RAEREMBRAR (R (BB &AM
BRE EFEER_ZEZENF+ _A=+—
AZEeakArEERER URBEZB L
FEZHGARGER HSEAEDEIRIEER
ERER URTBEFHEME REAMME
fRRE-

EERAAVBRRARENER

ERAREFARERBBERMEHRELENRE
BARFHGRD) 2BBERERBRLEBEMAF
Wwh R EEAMHEHRR HETEBRERT B
MR ERR R EEM AT R B RE
BRENAREE NEMHBER I FEARK
FFEEE R M E M B AR R ENER
HEEMNEREER: MRBRMEE A BN G
ate
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

BB EE
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B % B RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2008, and of the Group's
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(a)
to the financial statements which indicates that the Company
reported net current liabilities of approximately RMB11,065,000
and net liabilities of approximately RMB11,063,000 and
the Group reported consolidated net current liabilities
of approximately RMB8,822,000 and net liabilities of
approximately RMB568,000. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2(a), indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2009

Choi Kwok Man
Practising certificate no.: P01777

=R

BEERR REHEAMBRRCRBREERMB
BEENEEMATHRR EQFANR B
BR_ZFFN\FT_A=T—HZHBIR
A B %%@ﬁx%ﬁiifZ%%%ﬁ&ﬁ
eRE YEERBEERAAKRIZEERE
HEREL

EYEBEHREBERZAMET EFEEMH

WMEMT20) EFRET ERATERRBAR
SHEEHARM11,065,000 M BEFEHAR
#¥11,063,0000T T ESEEAIZ®REE R
BEFHEHARES, 822,000t R BEFEHA
R ¥568,0007T © i L1550 i £ MY sE2(a)FT#l 2
HWEEBERNTFEEATHBREZ fJgs &
REKk BEEEZBEKEESRM-

Hitt=E1|

ARERBEER INREEBRE-NAN-F LR
ADE) F0MRABERRIEL RS - Kt zsh
ABEXEEMHBE - EETERAREZR
@ﬁ&ﬂﬁ@At%%ﬁ%iEﬁﬁEo

BENBEETMERABERLT
BRI A
BE _EEANF=ZA_-_ttH

BEX
HEFEEHT P01777
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meEREX

For the year ended 31 December 2008

RE-—FT/\F+-A=+—ALFE

34

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R AEST)
2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥ T AR For
Revenue SHE WA 5 18,214 29,719
Cost of sales & P AR (12,378) (18,976)
Gross profit EF 5,836 10,743
Other operating income H = A 6 1,145 3,712
Distribution costs o E A AR (2,948) (3,105)
Administrative expenses EREHA (7,495) (8,609)
(Loss)/profit from operations e (BE), SRR (3.462) 2,741
Net finance costs B & R A F R 7 (778) (1,546)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAT (EE) EF 8 (4,240) 1,195
Taxation I8 9 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year AKAREZEEA
attributable to equity holders BEREE
of the Company (E8|) B57 (4,240) 1,195
RMB (cents) RMB (cents)
AR (1) AR ()
(Loss)/earnings per share R (ER) 2F 13
Basic HAK (0.65) 0.20
Diluted e N/AFE H N/ATS 3 A
The notes on pages 39 to 108 form part of these financial #39F 1088 FTE MM R WK 2 —&f
statements. 5 e
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Balance sheets
EEBERX

As at 31 December 2008 R-ZFZENF+-HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARKZEN)

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARETFL ARETFT AR¥EFT ARETFT
Non-current assets F¥REBEE
Property, plant and nE - BE
equipment K& 14 750 828 2 1
Intangible assets BYEE 15 7,504 6,104 - -
Investments in subsidiaries HITB AT ZRE 16 - - - -
8,254 6,932 2 1
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 17 5,314 6,091 5,123 5,750
Trade and =N
other receivables H A BR X 18 8,991 11,036 1,490 9,977
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 19 2,821 8,628 181 730
17,126 25,755 6,794 16,457
Current liabilities RBaE
Loans and other borrowings ERREMER 20 16,805 25,201 16,805 25,201
Trade and ERNESR
other payables Hfth Bk 3K 21 8,723 18,860 1,054 9,232
Deferred income FEREWA 22 420 670 - -
___(25948)  (44731)  (17.859) (34,433
Net current liabilities REBAETFE (8,822) (18,976) (11,065) (17,976)
Net liabilities EREFE (568) (12,044) (11,063) (17,975)
Capital and reserves EARREE
Share capital f% 2 23 6,827 6,271 6,827 6,271
Reserves e 24 (7,395) (18,315) (17,890) (24,246)
Capital deficiency EARRHE (568) (12,044) (11,063) (17,975)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KB ZEEN -_ZTTAF A -+t HIERK

27 March 2009 FE 3%
Hung Yung Lai Xu Shu Yi
Chairman Director
REmL e ®maE
TE EE

o

The notes on pages 39 to 108 form part of these financial 5539F F108B FrEMM T Ak 2 — 8
statements. 52
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
HERREZZH X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R AEST)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANEAREREAEL
Statutory
Share Share surplus Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
EE
BAEN RAEE BHRE EifE 2REE CE

RMB'000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB 000
ARETT  ARETT AEETT AR¥TT  ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+F—-H—H 6,271 58,148 3,613 1,830 (84,415) (14,553)
Exchange difference on BENBDERABRE
translation of financial ZERER
statements of foreign entities - - - 1,314 - 1,314
Profit for the year AEERF - - - - 1,195 1,195
At 31 December 2007 and RZZZLF
1 January 2008 +ZA=t-8k
—ET\F—-A—H 6,271 58,148 3,613 3,144 (83,220) (12,044)
Exchange difference on BEHNE BRI BEERE
translation of financial ZERER
statements of foreign entities - - - 657 - 657
Shares issued BEITRR 556 14,503 - - - 15,059
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (4,240) (4,240)
At 31 December 2008 RZZET)\F
+-A=+—H 6,827 72,651 3,613 3,801 (87,460) (568)

The notes on pages 39 to 108 form part of these financial Z539F F108E FIE MM BB B REK 2 — 3B
statements. e

36 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&# (£E) ROERAHR



Consolidated cash flow statement

MERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN B A E)
2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt iF AR¥ T AR TF T
Cash flows from operating REEKEERE
activities:
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEET (E18) AT (4,240) 1,195
Adjustments for: PR
Loss on disposal of property, LEME- BE &
plant and equipment Bl SF 7 -
Depreciation e 462 204
Net finance costs BhE B AN F 5 754 1,515
Operating (loss)/profit before EEESEHINKE
changes in working capital (BE) B (3,017) 2,914
Decrease in inventories FERD 777 1,627
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUE 5 R R B A
other receivables JE W TR A (38 ) 2,045 (3,132)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and e B SRR R EAM
other payables FERE CRid),/#mn (10,137) 1,395
Decrease in deferred income B FE AR (250) (1,995)
Net cash (used in)/generated LT E (FTH) FiE4E
from operating activities zBReF® (10582 809
Cash flows from investing RETHZHERE
activities
Interest received 2 E 37 12
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BWE RREW
plant and equipment A 46 15
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEY % - R Rk fE
equipment 14 (437) (26)
Acquisition of intangible assets FERY WM 15 (1,400) (1,509)
Net cash used in investing RETBFAZEESFE
activities (1,754) (1,508)

The notes on pages 39 to 108 form part of these financial

statements.

IN o

77

FIVEF108EFAEMNKME AP B IHEK 2 — &8
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z —ZF

FNFF A=A —HAIFE

38

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARKZEN)
2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&t AR®FT AREFT
Cash flows from financing RETHZHERE
activities
Proceeds from loans and ERREEMEHIE
borrowings - 3,618
Proceeds from issue of BT P15 3RIA
ordinary shares 556 -
Proceeds from share premium A& 17 ' B FT 15 5RIA 14,503 -
Repayment of loan and BEERREER
borrowings (8,396) -
Interest paid =ENEESS (791) (1,527)
Exchange difference on BRENREBUBHRERZ
translation of financial EHZER
statements of foreign entities 657 1,314
Net cash generated from METENMEEZ2REFE
financing activites 6,529 3,405
Net (decrease)/increase iﬁ.ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f’%i
in cash and cash equivalents W) A (5,807) 2,706
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzHRek
at 1 January ReFEEY 8,628 5,922
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HzEHEK
at 31 December Re%EY 19 2,821 8,628

The notes on pages 39 to 108 form part of these financial

statements.

AN

430
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Notes to the financial statements

B 7% R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1.

(UARBRBEN)
REPORTING ENTITY

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 27 October 2000 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as
at and for the year ended 31 December 2008 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”). The Group is principally engaged in
the businesses of development, manufacture and sale
of software products, sale of related hardware products
and the provision of software-related technical support
services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Material uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis

At 31 December 2008, the Group had consolidated
net current liabilities of approximately RMB8,822,000
and net liabilities of approximately RMB568,000. At
31 December 2008, the Company had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB11,065,000 and net
liabilities of approximately RMB11,063,000.

Z2RERE

AR (EE)ROBR2R (AR
AR -_ZEZZFTA-_TEEKERR
ZE—NN\—F(RFLE) EAFREZMAK
UR—HERRERAR ERNDNEE
BAXSMARDALEIZER ([RIZR]) £
e RR B MM EE AU B E RS KN
B2 N FR AR ER] —HHE -

ARAR-ZZFZNFT_A=T—RARE
ERRLFEZEAMBRREEART
REKBRR (G [ AEE]) - RNREEE
ERNFERHEMMAE  RERHEE  HEM
B 1 2 mm M HR (R B AR B B SR BR 75

RREE

a) ERFEKEERTRITHBREER

HE-ZENF+_A=T—HLHF
E - AEBEGERDABEFENOA
K #8,822,000t R BEFEHAR
#568,000L - R —_ZEZENEFE+ - A
=+—H ARAERBDEEFELY
AE#11,065,0007T & B EFRELHA
K #11,063,0007T °

Annual Report 2008 —ZZNFFH

39



Notes to the financial statements

BF 7% ¥R R P A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

40

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAABRERBEN)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

a)

Material uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis (Cont’d)

The directors are of the opinion that the Company
and the Group are able to continue as a going
concern and to meet their obligations in full as and
when they fall due. In view of the liquidity problems
faced by the Company and the Group, the directors
have adopted the following measures with a view
to improve the Company’s and the Group’s overall
financial and cash flow position and to maintain the
Company's and the Group’s existence on a going
concern basis:

(i) Attainment of profitable and positive cash
flow operations

The directors continue to implement cost
control measures over overheads and various
general and administrative expenses, and are
actively seeking new investment and business
opportunities with an aim to attain profitable
and positive cash flow operations.

(ii) Ongoing financial support by the controlling
shareholder of the Company

Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, has undertaken
to the Company to provide continuous financial
support to the Company and the Group so as to
enable the Company and the Group to continue
its day-to-day operations as a viable going
concern notwithstanding any present or future
financial difficulties experienced by the Company
and the Group.

(iii) Additional external funding

The directors are considering various alternatives
to strengthen the capital base of the Company
and the Group through various fund raising
exercises.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

(UABRERBE)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

a)

b)

Material uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis (Cont’d)

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the
measures taken to date, together with expected
results of other measures in progress, the Company
and the Group will have sufficient cash resources to
satisfy its future working capital and other financial
requirements, and it is reasonable to expect the
Company and the Group to return to a commercially
viable going concern. Accordingly, the directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis, notwithstanding
the Company’s and the Group’s financial and liquidity
position as at 31 December 2008.

Should the Company and the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to restate the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the financial
statements.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).
statements also comply with the disclosure

These financial

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of
the GEM.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

2.
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(KARE BE)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

)

d)

e)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi, which is the Group’s functional currency.
All financial information presented in Renminbi has
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimate and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are disclosed in
note 32.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

a) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

b) Investments in subsidiaries
In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in

subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 3(i)).
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B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (XA BR# &)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEESHHE (#£)

¢) Property, plant and equipment 0 YME -BERRZE
(i) BRERIE

(i) Recognition and measurement

W% BE MREERB AR AR

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are

44

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 3(i)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Group and its cost can
be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

9}

d)

e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in income statement
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are two to five
years.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial
recognition the leased asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are
operating leases and the leased assets are not
recognised on the Group’s balance sheet.

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill (negative goodwill) arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree. When the excess is negative (negative
goodwill), it is recognized immediately in income
statement. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(i)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(UAREBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

3. TESEBE#)

e) Intangible assets (Contd) e) BEEE(#&)

46

(ii) Research and development

(iii)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognised in income statement when incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes. Development
expenditure is capitalised only if development
costs can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially
feasible, future economic benefits are probable,
and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete development, and to use
or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to
preparing the asset for its intended use. Other
development expenditure is recognised in income
statement when incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
(see below) and impairment losses (see note 3(i)).

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group, which have finite useful lives, are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (see below)
and accumulated impairment losses (see note

30)).
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

e)

f)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(iv) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is
expensed in income statement when incurred.

(v) Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in income statement
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill,
from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

capitalised development costs 3 -5 years
software 5 years

Amortisation method and useful life of the
intangible assets are reviewed periodically
to ensure that the method and period of
amortisation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from the intangible
assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated
based on the weighted average costing methods,
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories and bringing them to their existing
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE

48

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAABRERBEN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

)]

h)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 3(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 3(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

i)

Impairment (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

All impairment losses are recognised in income
statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is
recognised in income statement.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories (see
note 3(f)), are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite lives or that are not yet available for
use, recoverable amount is estimated at each

reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely
are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

RE-—FT/\F+-A=+—ALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KARE BE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3. TESEBE#)

i) Impairment (Cont’d) i) RE(E)
(ii) Non-financial assets (Cont’d) (i) ¥LHEE (&)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash- —HEAENREELEBUMAK
generating unit is the greater of its value in use EleEERETAEBERA R ER
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing HERANRSEETE - E1E
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are FHREEN EHARMERSD
discounted to their present value using a pre- BN EEEHERZEED
tax discount rate that reflects current market BHERR 2 BATITIRE A5
assessments of the time value of money and the RKBFeRENRAIRE -
risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not FENBEEBEE I REER =
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment WHEMEERE KREEZSEH
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed BT EEERN R EEEE
at each reporting date for any indications that TRl AT RS BT R
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An BETREBERL I TBAFE WA
impairment loss is reversed if there has been VA TE ] YR Bl & RE ) {51 3R
a change in the estimates used to determine g BREBESRER-BE
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss EiEBEEENEEREBE T8
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's = PR AR I A T SRR B S 1R I R
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying EEFERREE (BRI ERK
amount that would have been determined, net BEEH) o
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

j) Trade and other payables D ENEZRHEMERE

BN E 5 R EMRIBLRIZ AT EERE
R BRIDEIHRAAR BTN
B TER AERAARK-

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

k) Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, the revenue is
recognised on the following bases:

(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of software and hardware
is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts, and value added or
other sales tax. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending
on the individual terms of the contract of sale.
Transfer usually occurs when the product is
received at the customer’s premises.

(ii) Services

Revenue from provision for maintenance and
other services is initially recognised as deferred
income and is amortised in income statement on
a straight line basis over the term of the service
period.
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (XA BR# &)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEESHHE (#£)

I) Other operating income ) H&EERA
(i) Value added tax refunds (i) BEHEE

K E BRI YR BB R
RRERENTUER

Value added tax refunds are recognised when
the acknowledgement of refunds from the tax
bureau has been received.

52

(iij) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions associated with the grant. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised in income statement on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are recognised.

m) Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

Maximum lease payments made under finance
leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance expense is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted
for by revising the minimum lease payments over
the remaining term of the lease when the lease
adjustment is confirmed.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

n)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognized as an
expense in income statement when they are due.

(iii)) Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that
vest.

The fair value of the amount payable to
employees in respect of share appreciation
rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised
as an expense, with corresponding increase in
liabilities, over the period in which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to payment.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting date
and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair
value of the liability are recognized as personnel
expense in income statement.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KARE BE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

0)

p)

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds
invested, dividend income, and foreign currency gains
that are recognised in income statement. Interest
income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method. Dividend income is recognised on
the date that the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on
borrowings, foreign currency losses that are
recognised in income statement. All borrowing
costs are recognised in income statement using the
effective interest method.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax expense is recognised in income
statement except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

p)

q)

Income tax expense (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet
method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they
probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBEN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

q)

r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont’d)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortised cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of
the period, adjusted for effective interest and
payments during the period, and the amortised
cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Foreign currency differences
arising on retranslation are recognised in income
statement.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3% MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

r)

s)

Foreign currency (Cont’d)

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to Renminbi
at exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations,
excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary
economies, are translated to Renminbi at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The income and expenses of foreign operations
in hyperinflationary economies are translated to
Renminbi at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Prior to translating the financial statements
of foreign operations in hyperinflationary
economies, its financial statements for the
current period are restated to account for
changes in the general purchasing power of
the local currency. The restatement is based on
relevant price indices at the reporting date.

Foreign currency differences are recognised
directly in the exchange reserve within equity.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part
or in full, the relevant amount in the exchange
reserve is transferred to income statement.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAREBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

s)

t)

Related parties (Cont’d)

i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Earnings/loss per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings/
loss per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic
earnings/loss per share is calculated by dividing the
earnings/loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings/loss per share is determined by adjusting the
earnings/loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise share options
granted to employees.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 7% R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z—ZF

FNFF A=A —HAIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

u)

v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred as part
of finance costs, except to the extent that they
are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other

segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAABRERBEN)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

v)

w)

Segment reporting (Cont’d)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include item directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to

other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period. Unallocated items mainly
comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-
bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances, corporate

and financing expenses.

New and revised IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations

The International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”) has issued a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3. TEFEHE#)

w) New and revised IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations w) FIIRZETEBRTEREEAR
(Cont’d) BB REREZESRE (&)

The Group has also adopted the following new and FAAREBEINE RN A TG R
revised standards, amendments and interpretations {ERTHER| AEFT A MR IE - IR F &
Al EFI AR BT EBEHASEENS
ARERBREMEE B

during the year. The adoption of these standards,
amendments and interpretations has not led to any
changes in the Group's accounting policies. There are:

IFRIC 11, “IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share BRI e R EZESE 1% [E
transactions”; BREf TSR SR E2G S BEETT
RS

BT GHREREREEE12%  [R
TR AT ]

IFRIC 12, "Service concession arrangements”;

IFRIC 14, "IAS 19 — The limit on a define benefit BRI BREREEEeF 145 [H
asset”; BMatERE19K-AENZEEZ
BRI

IAS 28 (Amendment), “Investments in associates” BB & s R 5E281K (BRTAK) - fE’:‘
(and consequential amendments to IAS 32, “Financial B N R MR E] (RE MR

instruments: Presentation” and IFRS 7, “Financial FHAEBIEE3215 ’—iFﬂI/E\-'EE@H &

instruments: Disclosures”);

IAS 31 (Amendment), “Interests in joint ventures”
(and consequential amendments to IAS 32, “Financial
Instruments: Presentation” and IFRS 7, “Financial
instruments: Disclosures”);

IAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial instruments:
Presentation”, and IAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation
of financial statements”, “Puttable financial
instruments and obligations arising on liquidation”;

and

IFRS 8, “Operating segments”.
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Notes to the financial statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R AEST)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EESFEHE &)

w) New and revised IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations w) FITRKETEBRYEREERR
(Cont'd) EMBERERBREEERE (&)
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEZSUBEHREZLEH BEg
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, FFEAZEGEM T UT 2B R
new standards and interpretations which are not Rl el RRE Y RREEZ
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 ZENFTZA=T—BLFEENK
and which have not been adopted in these financial R RERAR S F I B mke T 5%
statements. The following standards, amendments BRAEBEMERES:

and interpretations were issue but not effective:

IFRS 1 (Amendment), “First-time adoption of IFRS”, BB IS S R E1E (BFTA) -

and IAS 27, “Consolidated and separate financial (%‘Kﬁéipﬂﬁf’%ﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁ%—%ﬁ'JJ AR

statements” (effective from 1 January 2009); B2 ER|E 2715 [4rE RIB B
%%&%J (ZEZhEFE—A—HEE
) s

IFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based payment” BIBR B #5 s 5 E R B2 (IBET ) -

(effective from 1 January 2009); (A BERANT] (Z2EEREF
—BA—HEER)

IFRS 3 (Revised), “Business combinations” (effective BB B 7 R 5 HE R B3 (I ET) »

from 1 July 2009); [¥%a0] (ZEZNFLHA—BR
ER)

IAS 23 (Amendment), “Borrowing costs” (effective R ERFE23ME (BRTA) - [ &

from 1 January 2009); FRAI (ZEENF-A—HBg4k
) s

IAS 27 (Revised), "Consolidated and separate BIPR @5t 2RI 2716 (L1E8ET) ' [45

financial statements” (effective from 1 July 2009); aREYBERE] (ZETNF
A—H®BAER)

IFRIC 13, “Customer loyalty programmes” (effective BRI BHREREZEGE13% (B

from 1 July 2008); EREEE] (ZEENFLH—H
B

IFRIC 15, “Agreements for construction of real BRyBEREREEEEE 155 &

estates” (effective from 1 January 2009); WwEREZERR] (ZEEhLF—HA—
BfAER) :

IFRIC 16, “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign B EREREEEEE 165 f/i

operation” (effective from 1 October 2008); INEBFERENER] (ZEF)

FHA—BRAER)
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Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% ¥R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN B A E)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FESHHEK(£)

w) New and revised IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations w) FIIRZETEBRTEREEAR
(Cont'd) BB EREREZEERE (&)
There are a number of amendments to: IFRS 5, LTEEBETE ERMBE®RSE
“Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued HERIESE [BIELENERDE
operations” (and consequential amendment to IFRS 1, ENE®IEER] (&AM EEE
“First-time adoption”); IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: BHRELEE G [FREM] E
Disclosures”; IAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes A BB BREEREIE (28
in accounting estimates and errors”; IAS 10, “Events TE:EE]: B s ElE8%k:
after the reporting period”; IAS 16, “Property, plant GETHCR  gET AT RREEH ]
and equipment” (and consequential amendments to B2t ERF100G [MEHRHEE
IAS 7 “Statement of cash flows"); IAS 18, “Revenue”; BEIE] BB g ERE 6K (Y
IAS 19, “Employee benefits”; IAS 20, “Accounting X BEEREE] (REmMEYHE®
for government grants and disclosure of government FFERE7TR[BeREmME]NE
assistance”; IAS 23, “Borrowing costs”; IAS 27, A1) R EETAERIZE 18 TR
“Consolidated and separate financial statements”; B e 2051915 [EERH ]
IAS 29, “Financial reporting in hyperinflationary BB et ERF2006 [BRFEBH
economies”; IAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”; R AAERBITMENA#EER ] B
IAS 36, “Impairment of assets”; IAS 38, “Intangible SR ERFE 236 [ERKAR]
assets”; IAS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition R ERE27ME (46 BB
and measurement”; IAS 40, “Investment properties” BHmR] BB ERE290%  [ER
(and consequential amendments to IAS 16, “Property, EREWRCERRNVBRS]
plant and equipment”); and IAS 41, “Agriculture”; R st R340 [ HA BT 78
which are part of the IASB’s annual improvement H BBE e ERIE36%K [EER
project published in May 2008 (not addressed above). B BB EAFE38G [BEE
These amendments are unlikely to have an impact on El AR ERE3M% [/ T
the Group’s financial statements and have therefore B EREEHE] BB ERIZE40
not been analysed in detail. B [EWE] (RAMYBEE g

ERIE 6l DX BFERKRE] O
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Notes to the financial statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

4, SEGMENT REPORTING 4. DEB2ER
Segment information is presented in respect of the D EE R THIRE AN & B 6 E 55 K i [ 5 3
Group's business and geographical segments. Business 2 -EBHHBERDERETEZERHA -
segment information is chosen as the primary reporting EAEBOIERNEREERMBRET
format because this is more relevant to the Group in A& N EH -

making operating and financial decisions.

a) Business segment a) ¥BoE
Throughout the year, the Group has been operating REBPFHREE —EBHE A
in a single business segment, i.e. the development, fE - BLERIHESHER  HEMEH
manufacture and sale of software products, sale of T8 B o IR AR X AR B BT AR 7
related hardware products and provision of software- E UL 25 5 B & K o

related technical services. Accordingly, no business
segment information is presented.

b) Geographical segment b) #EZL B
As the Group's revenue and results are substantially ARASENRAREEKRILD A F
derived from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") EARLME ([FEH])EE MEL
and its operating assets and liabilities are also based EEENBEIRAPEREM i E
in the PRC, no geographical segment information is 23R 5 EE -
presented.
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARKZEN)

5. REVENUE 5.

HEWA

AEEXT2RENMFEMFAE  RERH
€ HERBEMSE®RMEHRTIFEBAR
MSRRIEF R - A TREI AR E 2 &
XR BERERFELRRHEEEREMRS
EERRA - EXBIBEHER W
BREREMEZITMEERERAR NEEWR

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
development, manufacture and sale of software products,
sale of related hardware products and provision of
software-related technical support services. Revenue,
which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of sales and revenue from provision for

maintenance and other services. Turnover excludes sales ADIEAT
taxes and is stated after allowances for returns and trade
discounts. An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
The Group
A%EH
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Sale of computer software SHE BIGEUF 980 3,577
Sale of computer hardware HESISE T 2,995 10,015
Provision for maintenance and RREEENEMMR
other services 14,239 16,127
18,214 29,719
6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. HMh&EWA
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fx AREFT
Sundry income MW A 556 2,064
Exchange gain bE 5 s 500 1,180
Value added tax refunds RO IEE R 89 322
Government grants TR BL - 80
Rental income from subletting RBKGEHESHEYE
properties under operating lease 2 WA - 66
1,145 3,712
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

7. NET FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEEBREE
The Group
KEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARETT

Interest income on bank deposits RITIFE A B (37) (12)
Interest on bank advances and HARAFAZHEE
other borrowings wholly repayable ZRITARREAMERK
within five years ZHE 791 1,527
Others HAh 24 31
Finance expenses B 75 2 815 1,558
Net finance costs B8 R FR 778 1,546
8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BFiml (B1E) HA
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the BREAT (EIE) s FME MK NHIER -
following:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T T

Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRA (BREESH
remuneration) ®)
— salaries, wages and —-HE2 IEK
other benefits H b 48 7 6,375 5913
— contributions to defined — ARG E 2 HHK
contribution plans 660 945
7,035 6,858
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B & 268 293
Depreciation of property, ME- -HWEREZHEITE
plant and equipment 462 204
Operating lease charges: KEHEER REHAS
minimum lease payments
— property rental —MHAmE 1,349 1,314
Cost of inventories sold and ELFERDRERS 2
services rendered? B AR 12,378 18,976
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

RE-FT/\F+-A=+—ALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAREBE)

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont'd)

Cost of inventories sold and services rendered includes staff
costs of approximately RMB2,634,050 (2007: RMB2,134,813)
and depreciation expenses of approximately RMB55,023 (2007:
RMB41,501) that are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

9. TAXATION

a)

b)

)

Overseas income tax

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and is
exempt from taxation in Bermuda until 28 March
2016. The Company's subsidiary established in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") is incorporated under
the International Business Companies Acts of the
BVI and, accordingly, is exempt from payment of BVI
income taxes.

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no estimated assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong during the years

ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

PRC enterprise income tax

8. KFiA (EE), T&F &)

EHFERBIERREZ KA EIEETH A
AN 82,634,050 (ZFEF+F: NRHK
2,134,8137), fTEBHHIA RIES550237 (=
EZLF:ARK41,5017) B AL RE
FIZHE & B S 7TREZABREA -

9. HIER

a)

b)

9]

BONREH

AARRBREEMEL WERE
REREZHEEE-_T—~F=A
ZHNB - ARRRKEBELHS (5
T8 [BVI ) AL 2 Y /&8 A B AR B BVIE
BREE AR FAt e X
NBVIZ Fi18%: »

ERNEH

HRAEERBE_ZZENFR_-ZF
ELF+_A=+—"HIEFEHMEAL
BEBBELRRTBOGEN  BAL KR
BBEBNEH -

o 1 3 18 B
2008

RMB’000
ARETT

2007
RMB'000
ARETT

PRC enterprise income

REIBEMEHR

Annual Report 2008 —ZZNFFH



Notes to the financial statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARKZEN)

9. TAXATION (Cont’d) 9. MIE (&)
¢) PRC enterprise income tax (Cont'd) o HELEMRESH (&)
Foreign investment enterprises that incorporated in TR T 2 R8T = ¥ R 0T 3R B B
the Advance Technology Industry Development Area BRI E D EEE TW
in Hangzhou City and Zhuhai City are entitled to FRHEBEMET REBERATF
full exemption from income tax for two years with EEE#EzEERBFERER I
effect from its first profitable year after offsetting RBER = (&5 EES0%FT S TR % o
prior years' losses and a 50% reduction in income NI EBERENRUBERZEEE
tax for the following three years thereafter. Foreign HMEFEH-

investment enterprises are also exempted from
income tax in years with financial loss.

i
2>
W
i
B

&
B¢
Nr
i
=)
—

The reconciliation of statutory tax rate to effective tax =
rate is as follows:

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Accounting (loss)/profit before BRFLAT (E518) & T
taxation (4,240) 1,195

Tax at the statutory tax rate (33%) A TER E33%:TEH

I8 (1,399) 394
Absorbed into/(set-off against) tax & A (% §4) FiEE B
losses 1,399 (394)
Tax expense BIEF - -
There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation HE-ZZEN\F+-A=T—HLHF
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil). EMEBEEXRRERRBELEHRB(ZZEF
HF ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEM <€
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 BIEEED GG FE 1615 TE 2 2 = B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ST
2008

Salaries,  Retirement

allowances benefits

and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total

E2 A= 4:1 RIKER
wEe REVNR B L3 @t

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Independent non-executive directors: BUFATES:
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BWE R & 63 - - 63
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEE K& 63 - - 63
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 63 - - 63
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cui Jian ERELE - 63 4 67
Mr. Xu Shu i REERL - 63 - 63
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RemE LA - 63 4 67

189 189 8 386
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-FZL/NF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARKZEN)

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Contd) 10. EEM <€ (&)
2007
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e R SRR
we REDNR ATEIE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARETT ARETx

Independent non-executive directors: B IFHITES

Mr. Pao Ping Wing EmERLE 69 - - 69
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 69 - - 69
Mr. Lo King Man EEXEE 69 - - 69
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 69 4 73
Mr. Xu Shu i REFERLE - 69 - 69
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ERELAE - 69 4 73
207 207 8 422
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no Bz _ZZ)N\Erk_ZZT+HF+_H
emolument was paid to the directors as an inducement to =T —RILFEE WEREAESE A
join or upon joining the Company or as compensation for SEAERSIIARR A SHIIA KRR AR Z
loss of office. None of directors waived or agreed to waive BMSIERREEZTRB  BE TEE
any remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2008 EREIAERPBE_ZETN\FR_F
and 2007. ELF+ A=+ BIEFE Z [
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11. &E5#H At

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, none ZEZZETNFRZEZTLHET A
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments is a =T —HLEFE AEEaFHATHILFE
director. The aggregate emoluments in respect of the five EF- IR (ZETHF - -AR)ERFA
(2007: five) individuals with the highest emoluments are as T 7 HENEREN T
follows:
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ABRETF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥i&  EB R EWH 1,368 960
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE N ET Bl
contributions 45 45
1,413 1,005
The emoluments of five (2007: five) individuals with the MeeB|A T TIERN AL (ZEE+
highest emoluments are within the following bands: F-RA)ERFATZABOT:

Number of individuals

AE
2008 2007
Nil - RMB1,000,000 == AR #1,000,0007T
(equivalent to approximately (%M #1,136,000
HK$1,136,000) ABIT) 5 5
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no HE-_ZZNFR_ZZTLF+H
emolument was paid by the Group to the five highest paid =St—RLEFE AEETERNLERS
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the FALTEZ A EARSIIIAZR R B0
Group or as compensation for loss of office. ARRABIR RS ERREESTBE 2
BEfE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5ESfT)

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12. KA PREEL (FB) 5
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders ARNAREREMRGEBEERSEAEA
of the Company includes a loss of RMB8,962,000 (2007: R#8,962,000 (T +F: AR
RMB4,351,000 profit) which has been dealt with in the 4,351,0007T) 2 K - B R AR A 7 B 7% 4R
financial statements of the Company. RANEZE -
13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8% (BER) BF
a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share a) EREX(EE)EF
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is BIRER (B1E) B IIRBFAR
based on the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary NEIEBEERZIEAARE (B18)
equity holders of the Company of RMB4,240,000 A ARE4,240,000 LB (—2F
loss (2007: RMB1,195,000 profit) and the weighted +F: AR¥1,195,00070% 7)) & E
average of 658,823,560 (2007: 603,000,000) B AT AR N4 ST 19 £1658,823,560
ordinary shares in issue during the year. f% (—ZZ+ 4 :603,000,0008% ) 5t
b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b) SR#E (BE) EA
No disclosure of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for BRRARA 2 HARITEERES RE
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December BB BUEREBEE_ZTTN\F
2007 is shown as the Company's outstanding share +TZA=t—RBR=ZZFZTLF+=A
options have antidilutive effect. =t—RALEFEZERES (BR)
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(UAREBEN)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Expressed in Renminbi)

14. PE - -BERRE

The Group rEE
Computer Other
Leasehold and related office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE EER Hit
NEEL RERE BAERE BH &t
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ANEEFT ANEEFT NEETFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
Cost HRA&
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+E-A-AH 2,861 9,003 3,410 989 16,263
Additions il - 26 - - 26
Disposals HE - (24) - - (24)
At 31 December 2007 and RZZTLE+ZA=1-H
1 January 2008 R=EENF-A—-H 2,861 9,005 3,410 989 16,265
Additions bl - 274 163 - 437
Disposals HE - (6,799) (1,580) (43) (8,422)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE+ZA=1-H 2,861 2,480 1,993 946 8,280
Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERBEER
impairment loss
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+5-A-H 2,861 8,419 3,101 861 15,242
Charge for the year REEM - 17 62 25 204
Written back on disposals HEHR - 9) - - (9)
At 31 December 2007 and RIZZLETZA=T-H
1 January 2008 RZZEN\5-A-H 2,861 8,527 3,163 886 15,437
Charge for the year REEM - 332 95 35 462
Written back on disposals REED - (6,683) (1,652) (34) (8,369)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=1-8 2,861 2,176 1,606 887 7,530
Net book value REEE
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE+ZA=1-H - 307 189 84 750
At 31 December 2007 R-BZLF+-A=1-H - 478 247 103 828
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 14 ¥ -BMERZE (&)

The Company YN

Computer and
related equipment

ERRAERE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFTT ARETT

Cost 2N

At 1 January ®n—H—H 80 87
Exchange adjustments ME W B (5) -
Additions #hn 2 -
Disposals R - (7)
At 31 December WR+—A=+—H 77 80
Accumulated depreciation =i

At 1 January mn—H—H 79 81
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B (5) -
Charge for the year RN 1 5
Written back on disposals ¥t x4 o] - (7)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 75 79
Net book value REFEE

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARKZEN)

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B E=E
The Group REME

Development
Goodwill costs Software Total
[k REER B CL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT

Cost KA
At 1 January 2007 RZZT+F-HA—A 272 9,980 939 11,191
Additions byl - 1,509 - 1,509
At 31 December 2007 and R-ZEE+F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2008 k—EENFE—-A—H 272 11,489 939 12,700
Additions i - 1,400 - 1,400
At 31 December 2008 R-EENE+-A=+—H 272 12,889 939 14,100
Accumulated amortisation and 2it#B#ERBEFE

impairment losses
At 1 January 2007 RZZT+F-HA—-H 272 5,385 939 6,596
Amortisation for the year KEHH - - - -
At 31 December 2007 and R-EE+F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2008 k—EENF—-A—H 272 5,385 939 6,596
Amortisation for the year REHH - - - -
At 31 December 2008 R-EENE+=-A=+—H 272 5,385 939 6,596
Net book value SREFE
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENEF+=-A=+—H - 7,504 - 7,504
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLE+A=1T—H - 6,104 - 6,104

Annual Report 2008 —ZZENFFH 75



Notes to the financial statements

B 7% ¥R R P A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE

76

(KARBBEL)
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

a) Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

b) Development costs represent new software products
internally developed by the Group. Software
represents the cost of acquiring computer software.

¢) The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

d) In 2006, the management of the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets.
Based on this assessment, the carrying amount
of the intangible assets was written down by
RMB1,192,000, which was disclosed on the face of
the consolidated income statement. The recoverable
amounts have been determined on the basis of value-
in-use calculations. All value-in-use calculations
are based on past performance, management’s
expectations for the market development and certain
key assumptions, and with reference to the valuation
report prepared by an independent valuation firm.

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15. B &= (&)

a) FETEWEARAESA S ER K
BRrA#pEE BEMIREE
NP EFEMEEDRZER -

b) FHERIEAKENERRE 2 HEF
Em B RRBEREZAA -

o AFHEFIINGABERTTHHA
XJET

d RIZEZERF AEBEERETEE
FEEZJRE S E -REWIEBEF
HEBREEE CRmMERMEARE
1,192,0007T ' RéR & B &k MK E -
AR El B IIRRBEAEETEEE
BT -MBEABAETEDRBAT
*B EEEHMBEERZHERE
FEERFZ - URBEHLEERA
WRZEEREMIELD -

16. RB LR 2RE

The Company

AT
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI G R AR 6,674 6,674
Less: impairment loss O EE A (6,674) (6,674)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(AR BEL)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 16. RMTB AR 2RE (#)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

ARBR-_ZZENFE+_A=+—BZH
BABFIREINMT

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2008 are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ Proportion of paid share capital/
Name of company operation ownership interest registered capital Principal activities
ERIRMRE
R/
ACIEE: B/ EE R BEEOL BRziEE TEREH
Direct Indirect
E# &

Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands 100% - 715 shares of Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Singlee BVI") RBRIES US$1 each  1REER

Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) 715k B REE
Co., Ltd. ([##BVI]) EWA )

Hangzhou Singlee Software ~ The People’s - 100% Registered capital Development, manufacture
Company Limited Republic of China US$4,325,500 and sale of software
(“Singlee Software”) (the “PRC") 4,325,500 T products, sale of

MM R AR AR REARLN A AR related hardware
([FFEH]) ([HE]) products and

provision of
software-related
technical services
R BENEERY
Em HEMBEN
B ARG
RN RMRSE

Hangzhou Singlee Technology ~ The PRC - 100% Registered capital Same as above
Company Limited H US$1,584,000 [t
("Singlee Technology”) 1,584,000% 1

MM BER R AMER
(TR )

Singlee Software (Zhuhai) The PRC - 100% Registered capital Same as above
Company Limited s US$1,250,000 AL
("Singlee Zhuhai") 1,250,000% T

BREH (RE)ERAR AMER
(T# Mg )

Beijing Century Financial The PRC - 100% Registered capital Same as above
Knowledge Company H RMB1,000,000 [t

Limited ("Beijing Century”)
TRt ERARAR
([ERtEa])

AR #1,000,0007T
HfE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE

78

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAREBE)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

a)

Singlee Software is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 50 years up to 26 May 2049.

Singlee Technology is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in the PRC having an operational
period of 20 years up to 15 October 2021. Singlee
Technology was held by Singlee BVI and Singlee
Software.

Singlee Zhuhai is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 20 years up to 15 March 2022. Singlee Zhuhai was
held by Singlee BVI and Singlee Software.

Beijing Century is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 10 years up to 2 June 2014.

In prior years, the directors determined the
recoverable amounts of the investments in
subsidiaries on the basis of value-in-use calculations
and recognised an impairment loss of RMB6,674,000.
Value-in-use calculations were based on past
performance, management’'s expectations for the
market development and certain key assumptions. In
2008, the directors assessed the recoverable amounts
of the investments in subsidiaries and concluded that
the impairment loss is not reversed as there is no
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amounts.
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16.

RBRRE2IRE (#)

a)

FRBGEAERPEKLZIINEEE
T KEFHE _FTWAFHA
—+NHIEAH50F -

AR ARPBEKL2RINEED
¥ KREFHE_T_—F+A+H
B 1E R HA204F « 37 A R i 37 A BVI R
GIRIE/SEES R

FHEHGERBPEKILZ I ED
¥ QEFHE_T-_—_F=-A+H
H 1k A 204  #7| 2k 8 B 37 FIBVI KX
ARG RA -

Rttt ARP BRI ZINEBEE
¥ OREFHE _ZT—NFE A H
1 AE105F -

RBATFE EFNERFERAEEBETE
EREEBETRNBARIZIRE Z
el eRE  THERAREEEARE
6,674,0007T £ BB E T ABE
=B TEEHMBERCHERE
FrEHERZAEEE-R_ZEZNF -
EETEAWB AR ZZRE 2T KE
S5 H 2 AR A B O EE
B ERHNAEEEIT KRB SE L
EET I 4 30 R a7 B P Bk o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
The Group The Company
X&E NN
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARFETT ARETZ AERKTR

Finished goods Sk m 5314 6,091 5,123 5,750

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an WHRRASRAIFESESTHT:
expense is as follows:

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥F ARBEFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFECEEE 8,098 15,363
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. FEUN B 5 BR 7 I H th B I FR 18
The Group The Company
X5E NN

2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETrT ARBETxZ ARFTx

Amounts due from/(to) JE Y2 B 2 FI5TIA

subsidiaries (note a) (Hiita) - - 1,267 9,720
Trade receivables (note b) [BWE SEF (Hizb) 8,751 10,069 - -
Prepayments and other receivables T RE R E kIR 240 967 223 257

8,991 11,036 1,490 9,977
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

18. FEW & 5 IR I H th B WK IR

(&)
a) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries a) EWKEATRE

The Company

¥ NN
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Due from subsidiaries NI B 8,215 60,195
Due to subsidiary FEHB B A R FA (6,948) -
Less: impairment loss R EE A - (50,475)
1,267 9,720

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

b) Trade receivables

An aging analysis of trade receivables, net of

impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts, is as

follows:

M (FEAS) P A BRI R | A - 1

a8 R X 4 B R R SR o

b) EWEZERMX

FEYE B RS (HIRRERBEREE)
ZRRESfOT

The Group
AR

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARETF T
Within 90 days 90K LA 6,682 4,907
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 48 9
181 to 365 days 181 KRE365K 17 3,740
Over 365 days 365 KM 2,004 1,413
8,751 10,069

The general credit terms of the Group range from

60 to 90 days. The Group may, on a case by case

basis and after evaluation of the business relationship

and creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon

customers’ request.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARKZEN)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 18. BRE Z IR K HM W RIE
(%)
b) Trade receivables (Contd) b) BWEZERER(Z)
Movements of impairment losses for bad and RIZBRBEEECEEHET 0 T:

doubtful debts are listed below:

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
At January »—A 650 650
Charge for the year FRRE - -
Write-offs i B - -
At December R+=A 650 650
c) All of the trade and other receivables are expected to o TEHIR—FAWEMEEYKE SR
be recovered within one year. X E A JE U FR A
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERREEEY
The Group The Company
X&HE b N
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ANREFT AREFn ARETFT
Cash and bank deposits, Re RBIER
denominated in
~ Hong Kong dollars BT AEN 25 32 7 12
- United States dollars —AETREM 184 726 174 718
— Renminbi ~-UAREBEN 2,612 7,870 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BEARRAZERER
in the balance sheets HeFEY 2,821 8,628 181 730
Cash and cash equivalents in the GERERERANZES
consolidated cash flow statement RBEEEY 2,821 8,628
Cash and cash equivalents of approximately RekRLEENHARE2612,0007
RMB2,612,000 (2007: RMB7,870,000) are denominated in (Z=F L% AR¥7,870,00070) 2 5%
Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency and kR SEPAAREREL  ARKL
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the F-BERAMEE HHHAELESA
exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government. X BRI B e 2 B S PR A <
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZL/\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (XA BR# &&(7)

20. LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20. ER K EMER
At 31 December 2008, loans and other borrowings were RZEZENF+TZA=+—H EFxEE
repayable as follows: MERZEEFHHNOT
The Group The Company
x5E NN
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFE ARETT AREFTr AR¥TI

Within 1 year —&R 16,805 25,201 16,805 25,201
After 1 year but within 2 years —F#%&EMFR - - - -

16,805 25,201 16,805 25,201
At 31 December 2008, loans and other borrowings were RZZEZENFE+_A=+—H EFREHE
analysed as below: fER 2P TaT
The Group The Company
x&E NN
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRBTR ARETT ARETZ ARFTX

Bank loans, secured (note a) BOTET BEE (Hita)
— repayable within 1 year -R—FEREE 16,805 18,064 16,805 18,064
- repayable after 1 year -R—EREMFREE

but within 2 years - - - _

16,805 18,064 16,805 18,064

Other borrowings unsecured (note b),  EftfE s EIEA (457h)
repayable within 1 year -R—FEREE - 7,137 - 7,137
16,805 25,201 16,805 25,201
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B % R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2008

RE-—FT/\F+-A=+—ALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBEN)

20. LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

21.

2% %

SRR EAtE R ()

F—

a) At 31 December 2008 the Group's and the a) RZZEENF+_A=Z=+—8"
Company’s bank loans of RMB16,805,000 (2007: REBRARRZRITERARE
RMB18,064,000) bear interests at rates of Hong Kong 16,805,000 (ZZEEZE+F: AR
Dollar Inter Bank Offered Rate plus 2.75% per annum 18,064,0007T) I B F H B RITR 2
(2007: 5.75% to 8% per annum). These loans were FEMISEFEMNB (ZTEE £
secured by (i) properties held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai F RBFSTISEREFAERME) ©
("Mr. Hung"), a director of the Company, and Ms. ZEEFUOWA AR EBRRMELE
lu Pun, the spouse of Mr. Hung, and (ii) properties (IR ]) RpRGE 2Bk 2+
held by Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import & Export BEZME: RNREREEEARNRZ
Company Limited, a company owned by Mr. Hung ERBRRFERZ T ([T ]))%
and a controlling shareholder of the Company, Ms. Li Bz RAFABAELABRARR
Kei Ling (“Ms. Li"). BZEEER-

b) The other borrowings were unsecured and repayable by HMmEXRAEBERLER—FAE
within one year. At 31 December 2007, other B R-_ZET+HF+_HA=+—8"
borrowings of RMB7,137,000 of the Group and REBREAQNR ZHEMERARE
of the Company bear interests at rates of 5% per 7,137,0007C  JiiZ B FSERHE o
annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BN EZ R KB FIE

The Group The Company
X&E b N

2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT

Trade payables (note a) BT B BT (Wita) 4,169 5,829 - -
Deposits and receipts in Be REEREPHERA

advance from customers 538 538 - -

Accruals and other payables EREARAMENTE 3,876 4,978 914 1,717

Due to ultimate holding company B &&HER A B FUA

(note b) (Hazb) 12 12 12 12

Due to a related company (note ¢)  JERBAE AR FIE (Hitc) - 4,937 - 4,937

Due to directors (note d) EREEHE (Hitd) 128 2,566 128 2,566

8,723 18,860 1,054 9,232
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE

84

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

a)

21. ENE SRR EMEN A

("Goldcorp™) is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
has no fixed terms of repayment. Goldcorp is owned
by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a director of the Company, and
Great Song Enterprises Limited, a company owned by
a controlling shareholder of the Company, Ms. Li Kei
Ling.

The amount due to Sing Lee International Trading
Limited, in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a director of the
Company, has controlling interests, is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due to directors are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

(#)
An aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: a) ENEBIERZERI>THT:
The Group The Company
K& K0
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF AREFT AREFT AEEFT
Within 90 days 90K AR 3,375 4,382 - -
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 185 5 - -
181 to 365 days 181 KAE365K 205 28 - -
Over 365 days 36580 £ 404 1,414 - -
4,169 5,829 - -
The amount due to Goldcorp Industrial Limited b) M 1JGoldcorp Industrial Limited

([Goldcorp |) KIB B EIER - TETE
Ko I 4% [ 7E 38 30 B © Goldcorpi A
NAESRMEBELERBARRAIE
KRR FERZTHEE 2 A aGreat
Song Enterprises Limited# A °

ENAFANERESBERAR (AQE
EERBEAERNR AR ERERE
i) RIS EER AT ERLEETE
ERFER-

ENEEFELSEER FHERY

EEEENFY -

P e E 5 BR K I HL At FE S SRIE T8
IR —FAX -



Notes to the financial statements

B 7% 3 % M 3

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—FZLNF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

22. DEFERRED INCOME 22, EEWA
Deferred income represents the unamortized balance IRIEW AR R E R B A0 AR T 2 RS UK
of revenue from provision of maintenance and other ABRE DREBERRARAEPIRHRS
services which is recognised on a straight-line basis to the < B R E R -
income statement over the period of service provided to
customers.
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. AR
The Group and
the Company
AEBRARAT
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 (2007: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each —EELF:
10,000,000,000
M%) &R E{E0.01
BT BB 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER:
663,200,000 (2007: 603,000,000) 663,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each —EELF:
603,000,000/% )
SRME{E0.01E T
ZE B 6,632 6,030
Equivalent to RMB'000 ARBFT2EE 6,827 6,271
On 11 January 2008, the Company passed an ordinary RZEZENF—A+—H KRAFRBB—
resolution whereby the Company agreed to issue a total HERBARZR BUEARTREUNEGR
60,200,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.271 per 0.271787T31760,200,0000 FAX E {E0.01
share as consideration for full and final settlement of loans BT 2FRTREE (EREWRAAFLE
in an aggregate amount of HK$16,316,875 due from the #316,316,8758 T2 BERZ 2 H R &KL
Company to each of the Subscribers. X2 REe
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

24. RESERVES 24. [#1E

a) The Group a) AX&KEH

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARARBRAARL
Statutory
Share surplus Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE EEBRHERE EXRE 2itEE st

RMB'000  RMB00O  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETL ARETT ARETT  ARETT

At 1 January 2007 RZZZt+$-A—H 58,148 3,613 1,830 (84,415) (20,824)
Profit for the year KEFRF - - - 1,195 1,195
Exchange difference on WENBEENBREL

translation of financial EXERE

statements of foreign entities - - 1,314 - 1,314
At 31 December 2007 and i o i e = D

1 January 2008 —ZZ)\§-H—H 58,148 3,613 3,144 (83,220) (18,315)
Issue of shares during the year CETRA 14,503 - - - 14,503
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (4,240) (4,240)
Exchange difference on BRENBEENBREL

translation of finandial EREE

statements of foreign entities - - 657 - 657
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZNE+=A=1+—-A 72,651 3,613 3,801 (87,460) (7,395)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARKZEN)

24. RESERVES (Cont'd) 24. & (&)
b) The Company b) &4H
Share Capital Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R EE BAffE EXGRE 2itEE #st

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000
ARETE  ARETT  ARETT  ABETL  ARETZ

At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+4-A—H 58,148 4,718 - (84,262) (21,396)
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (4,351) (4,351)
Exchange difference on BRENBBEHBREL

translation of financial EXEE

statements of foreign entities - - 1,501 - 1,501
At 31 December 2007 and RIERLEF-A=1-HK

1 January 2008 —ZT)\§-H—H 58,148 4,718 1,501 (88,613) (24,246)
Issue of shares during the year BETRA 14,503 - - - 14,503
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (8,962) (8,962)
Exchange difference on BREHNEERIBERRL

translation of financial ERER

statements of foreign entities - - 815 - 815
At 31 December 2008 RZZEEN\E+=A=1+—-H 72,651 4,718 2,316 (97,575) (17,890)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

24. RESERVES (Cont'd)

24. f#f® (#)
¢) Nature and purpose of reserves o REZIHEEHEEN

(i) Share premium (i) BHEE

88

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
transfer 10% of their net profit, after offsetting
prior years’ losses, as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make
good previous years' losses, if any, and may
be converted into share capital by the issue of
new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholdings or by increasing the
par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of their registered capital.

The directors of Singlee Software resolved not to
make any appropriation to the statutory surplus
reserve for the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2007 as this subsidiary has sustained loss for
the years.

The directors of Singlee Technology resolved
not to make any appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve for the year ended 31 December
2008 as this subsidiary has sustained loss after
taking into account prior years' losses. The
directors of this subsidiary resolved not to make
any appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2007 as this
subsidiary has sustained loss for the year.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

(i)

B aEBRZEAIXARE
— NN\ —FRRE)FA0KE

~

mR

EEREZ

BB A B AR B At
B BEEHEEFEZER
BZAHNNZ10%BEEETENE
T HEXRBREREDNZIME
ARZ50% - BEFIA S UL AR
WA DK B FIRERAIEL

EEREEARNREBEFE
ZER(mME) BEREERE
B FE I 8 A B R B AT R SR
IN% & BORF B By B ERDEE
REEEBR BN ERZETT
B HERTSIONEMELRAZ
25% °

BRI KB A REF RS EE
HAEHEcEFHERTEREE
“EENFR-ZZTLF+A
=t BUEFEFREEER

BN S MBEFE Z BRER I
Co)--INCIES - §-3 0 SE R L =
BREZBAMERBE_FZ
NFE+ZA=+—BIFEED
EDEE AR B - AR UL
BRAREFHREER ZEWE
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

RE-FT/\F+-A=+—ALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAREBE)

24. RESERVES (Cont’d)

)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve (Cont’d)

The directors of Singlee Zhuhai and Beijing
Century resolved not to make any appropriation
to the statutory surplus reserve for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 as these
subsidiaries have sustained loss after taking into
account prior years' losses.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(r).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company represents
the difference between the net asset value of
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
shares issued by the Company.

24. f#&1E (&)

9]

REZMEEEEN (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RBEREE (&)

ARE MBEFEZEIBEZ
EMBRARFESRSER F1H
HKERIE R L EETZATE
REBE_ZZNFR_ZETLEF
+Z A=+ —HALEFEELER

EERTEE B

ELEE

ERREREMARBERIE
B BMREEZINE L BE
B WRBERBERMEINZ
BRI -

Ny

KRB Z BN 3 UL B P B

NAIZBEFEEARN QAT
iz EEMER I Z5E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z—ZF
(UANRHRE)

24. RESERVES (Cont'd)

FNFFT A= —HAIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

24. f#fE (&)

REZMEEEEN (&)

¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d) 9]

(v) RiEFEE 5 R R KGR EE

(v) Differences between financial statements

90

prepared under PRC accounting rules and

BB EER R R B

regulations and IFRSs ZEE
PRC accounting rules and regulations required PEEERA RIEFIEE £
the subsidiaries registered in the PRC to provide Bl M A E A R ER R T8

for staff and worker’s bonus and welfare fund,
which are appropriated from net profit after tax,
after offsetting prior years’ losses, as determined
under PRC accounting rules and regulations, but
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.
Appropriation to the staff and workers’ bonus
and welfare fund is at the discretion of the
directors of such subsidiaries. The staff and

BRErNES ARESARK
BANPEL YEEKHEEFE
ZEBEER (RER RS R &G
FIEE) EXRFARRDIKZ
BE-BTITRBEEBMESZE
BHAEMNBLRREERNER
E-BMIBBMEBHNESRERS
B TR RITEALRZ MM B A

worker's bonus and welfare fund can only be SRAEMNEARBEERSAE
utilized on special bonuses or capital items for A-unEEEs RERHEMBE
the collective benefits of the employees of the TREMEE - RBEEN BT

individual subsidiary such as the construction
of dormitories, canteen and other staff welfare
facilities. The fund is non-distributable other
than in liquidation. When the relevant assets
are disposed of or written off, the original
transfers from the fund are reversed. Under
IFRSs,
included as expenses and the balance of the

appropriations to the fund have been

fund as a liability of the Group. The directors
of such subsidiaries resolved not to make any
appropriation to the fund for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007.

There are no other material differences between
the Group's financial statements prepared in
accordance with PRC accounting rules and
regulations and IFRSs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z—ZF

FNFF A=A —HAIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

24. RESERVES (Cont’d)

d)

e)

Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
("Companies Act”), share premium and capital
reserve are distributable to shareholders, subject to
the condition that the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of share
premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital account.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company
had no reserve available for distribution to equity
holders of the Company.

Capital risk management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other shareholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (as shown in the balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity other than amounts recognized
in equity relating to cash flow hedges, and includes
some forms of subordinated debt.

24. f#&1E (&)

d)

e)

Rz IRt

REERZE-NAN-F(RFR)
(TRRPA]) - s B R E AN
7K T BR - HE iR E ()R 2 B R K
RIENBREEGEEZEEINNZA
B H(NEEEZAEREBEBEIK
MEREMEREAENRED BEITHRA
REB 2 BIARE A EIRKIK
MAE B BRARERENEEIE
H 3k o

RZZETENFR-_ZEZTLF+ A
=t+—HA AAFLEAHD KT A
NEREFBANZRHE-

Rz 2Rt

$’§l%‘£¥i§$2§§ B R TYREAR
[ 58 50 ikﬁ BREFERLEEER
TR ERRKF AR E
A &HE%EELA&ZE%’E}I@}%$E’UF&E
B EERBRRREHDER N AH AT
SRR E RS

REEBRGREEHHERNEERER
ARERE - UEREREBRBRT

AgfEsrReEEKTFERFHNE
AROR TS PR A i B R AR PR 2 TS T
B WHEELERENE(EERRE
BYELFE -

MEMEIZE K XEBENLRES
BERAG XK FHRERETERNE
E"Jitttr‘ﬁz/ﬁﬁﬁﬁfbxi@ﬁﬂiér
B FRBEREBR (ﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁh
RIREBR G RBRFEYHE - KH

BERNBDEMBEERKHD ([‘fﬁ@fw:
BB REE P 2w 2 FKIEN)
WEERERESSER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (AARK#BEN)

24. RESERVES (Cont'd) 24. s (#)
e) Capital risk management (Cont’d) e) RBEZUDIRME(E)
During 2008, as in the past few years as well, the R-ZZETN\FHME EBREEF—
Group has been in an effort to gradually improve S AEEBNZRTRELCHRAE
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio to a reasonable BEARLEFHEE G EKF - BIR
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the AR X KEEFEHAEN
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to FTREZRE BEEARATRE - 317
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue FR IR AERERHEEE R
new share, raise new debt financing or sell assets to KafE-

reduce debt.

The Group
KEE
2008 2007
RMB"000 RMB’000

AREFTT ABRET T

Current liabilities: MEBEE:
Loans and other borrowings EREEMEE 16,805 25,201
Trade and other payables ERESHEZ R
o ANE 8,723 18,860
Deferred income PR FE WA 420 670
25,948 44,731
Less: cash and cash equivalents HReMREEEY (2,821) (8,628)
Net debt BEFH 23,127 36,103
Total equity T 2= #B R (568) (12,044)
Less: dividend paid W B RE - -
Adjusted capital KHARENR (568) (12,044)
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio KRB EERNL EFE N/ATE i * N/AT 3 3 *
* Adjusted capital has remained in a negative position * RZFBENFR ZZEHFHR 48T #
throughout 2008 and 2007. BAXRFs B 2R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(AR BEL)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION 25.

(Expressed in Renminbi)

BERBKRE

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 27 August 2001, the directors may at their
discretion grant options to employees (including directors
of the Company) of the Group and other persons who,
in the sole discretion of the board of the directors,
have contributed to the Group (”Participants”). The
Scheme enables the Company to grant share options to
Participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. The Scheme would be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. After the listing of the shares on GEM,
the total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue upon completion of placing,
capitalisation issue and other shares to be issued upon
the exercise of the over-allotment option in connection
with the listing of the shares on GEM. According to the
Scheme, the total number of shares available for issue as
at 31 December 2008 is 66,320,000 (2007: 60,300,000)
shares.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 month period up to the date of grant
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of
grant.

The subscription shall be at a price determined by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the higher of the closing price of the shares
on the date of grant of the option and the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option.

BRER-_ZFZT-—FN\A-_TEHARAZ
EEBREE ([ZTE)) BEFA 2%
FIEREMER (BREARBNES) R E
MHEAEBBEERMZAL (AEAI2H
ENERTERE TEENEREARARAR
HERET2EE FRETRFHAE
BB ER MR - X B ARAE
RN BE+5 - BHBRERTHERS
BARNARE - BRARE EEK-

REZFEAHTREZEREZRD L
RASHBEERNRA TR 22 HITRAH
30% ° XD B AR £ & - RIBZE
8| R AT B b 5T 8 AT sE R 0 1O R A A TR
TRARBTHRNDEBAS R ITTEBBST
FRBCE - BAL BT RATEBEREL R
ARETAETHEMBRNKRENAE XK
EEITRMOMNI0% REZEN_-FF
NFH+ZRA=+—RARHZERER
66,320,000% ( —Z = = + % : 60,300,000
) e

BEEERT ARt Z@ABES2EE
BIBTEERKBEROERE (RED
TEREARITENERE) EmESFE %
TRETFEITHRMDBHETSBANED
HEE #TIRDAI1% ©

RBEAHEZTS2RRTE HEZEBS
ROREHBREE B # I U (B K%
HERER AT REE XA FHRTE
EMEFHNRSE -

NS
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25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd)

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon

25.

BEBKRE (&)

EETWRARELARE THBRENE

receipt of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee BNEBRN8AN  ZEEBERERE
within 28 days from the offer date, together with a FEENEWXBARA WRFZAFR

remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the
board to each grantee but may not be exercised after the
expiry of ten years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under
the Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share
to its employees (including three executive directors) of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price
of HK$0.58 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. Share options granted are subject to a
vesting scale in tranches of 33.3 per cent each per annum
starting from five months after the date of grant and fully
vested in five months after the second anniversary of the
date of grant, providing that the grantees remain under
the employ of the Group. The vested share options are
exercisable within ten years of the grant date.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme
at an exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to two chief
executives of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.14 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The vested share options are
exercisable within ten years of the grant date. All share
options granted on 1 June 2004 were forfeited during the
year ended 31 December 2005.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

BUENBBITHEREERARE ERTE
THARZEEERESEEKRE

BRETRESSBANSARANGER
BE B AR 15 B AR A AT 81 0 R ARAT (2 - (BN AT
REL AR FEmBRITE

ARAEZFER-_ZTZT_FMAN
HRAEREE (BE3NATTEZ)RT
60,230,0000% f% 7 2 i A 4 - 2 Ht g i 2
TEEBAEERBE6I4T EERERR
AI—EARBH ARARHBREUTEAST
0S8 - AR B HAE AR AE
AR ERLBERESEEF3IZ33%Z
BEIMFEE UHRAREABRE_RBFE
TRAZEEE KHEAERRABNRE
AEBERE -EREBBERETNELAH
BEFTFERTLAITE

K/‘ﬂ%ﬁ%iﬁiuﬁ_??m%/\ﬂ Am
23] B E 8 T# F10,000,0000% %
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Notes to the financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd) 25. REBRE (#)

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 RRABRZFAER T LF+ANA
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the mH % E B & F47,550,0008% B 1n 2 B %
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its oz tREZITERERBREK0.368
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at T EBERERRA—ERZSZH  ARFIH
closing price of HK$0.36 immediately before the day on BERTEBREREK036T - AKEH
which options were granted. Share options granted are g AR ANEARG EXLBRES
subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 5 per cent starting 5% HBEDHFEE  WHREHBABRE=
from six months after the date of grant and fully vested BFETEER KEREAEAZDRR
after the third anniversary of the date of grant, providing AEEREE -EEEBRETNELAH
that the grantees remain under the employ of the Group. BETTFEARNFT AT

The vested share options are exercisable within ten years
of the grant date.

a) Movements in share options a) BREZZ2H
2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
¥ BRE T Bk
7B #E THE 88
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B FEKE BT TR
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—BHEKTE 0.388 51,750 0.614 6,970
Forfeited EHOR M - - 0614 (290)
Cancelled EHEUH 0.401 (7,750) 0614 (2,480)

Option granted on RZZEELFE+ANA

9 October 2007 Rt R - - 0.368 47,550

Outstanding at 31 December W+ZA=+—H

RATTE 0.386 44,000 0.388 51,750
Options vested at 31 December R+ ZA=+—HEHE 0.452 9,303 0.614 4,200
The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had RZZFZFNF+ZA=+—-HZHXK
an exercise price of HK$0.614 and HK$0.368 (2007: TR HE 2 1T 118 R0.6148 T K
HK$0.614 and HK$0.368) and a weighted average 0.368B T (ZFTFLF:06148 T
remaining contractual life of 8.38 years (2007: 9.32 50.3687%8 7T ) K INEF 988 T & KIF
years). HiR838F (ZTTLH:9.32%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(UARHBEL)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

25. BREBKRE (&)
BRE2E (F)

a) Movements in share options (Cont’d) a)

TRBEEERIES AR 5
BRRA-EENFZ RS

The following table discloses the details of the
share options held by directors and employees and
movements in such holdings during year 2008:

96
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Outstanding Cancelled & Outstanding
as at Forfeited as at
1 January during 31 December
2008 the year 2008
R-ZZENF R-ZBENE
Name of —-A-H RER +ZA=t+-H
directors/employees EE EEKE MATE  HERRREUE i R1TE
Options granted on RZEZZFMANR
8 April 2002 bl 1
Cui Jian (director) ER(E%) 3,180,000 - 3,180,000
Other employees HiES (TBEESE)
(other than directors) 1,020,000 (1,020,000) -
4,200,000 (1,020,000) 3,180,000
Options granted on RZEZLFE+ANA
9 October 2007 Btz B
Chan Kam Fai BRsRIE (1THEE)
(Chief Executive Officer) 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Other employees HinE8 (TREESE)
(other than directors) 41,550,000 (6,730,000) 34,820,000
51,750,000 (7,750,000) 44,000,000




Notes to the financial statements
Bt % 3R & M T

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z—ZF
(AR BEL)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd)

FNFF A=A —HAIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

25. EEBKRE &)
BRESSE (&)

a) Movements in share options (Cont’d) a)

TEBBREENREEMTHBRE 2
EER T LFRERES

The following table discloses the details of the
share options held by directors and employees and
movements in such holdings during year 2007:

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Forfeited as at
1 January during the 31 December
2007 year 2007
RZEE+F RZTTLE
Name of —A—H RER +ZA=t+—H
directors/employees EE/REEHA AT w8 MK mARTTHE
Options granted on RZEZEZFMANBEY
8 April 2002 z,ﬁ%ﬂﬂ&
Cui Jian (director) ER(EF) 3,180,000 - 3,180,000
Other employees HiES (TREES)
(other than directors) 3,790,000 (2,770,000) 1,020,000
6,970,000 (2,770,000) 4,200,000
Options granted on RZZZ+ETANBRT
9 October 2007 2B iE
Chan Kam Fai BRepiE (1THEE)
(Chief Executive Officer) - - 6,000,000
Other employees Hitgg (FBRES)
(other than directors) - - 41,550,000
6,970,000 (2,770,000) 51,750,000
Annual Report 2008 —ZZNFFH
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBE)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd)

b)

25. BEEBKRE (&)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share b) REEBZEERRRITEEBEREZ
options at balance sheet date 3N
Remaining Exercise Number of options
Date granted Exercise period contractual life price 2008 2007
BREHE
RHBAH TR BTENFH TEE =—TENF _—TITLHF
HKS ‘000 ‘000
BT FR FR
8 April 2002 7 September 2002 3.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,400
—EE-FMA\H to 7 April 2012 3.27%F
—TR-HENAALHE
ZE-ZFMALA
8 April 2002 7 September 2003 3.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,400
—EZ-_FPNANA to 7 April 2012 3.27%
—ZEE=FNALHZE
—E-_FmMA+tH
8 April 2002 7 September 2004 3.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,400
ZEEZ-FWANA to 7 April 2012 3.27%F
—EEMFEAALRE
—E-_FMALH
3,180 4,200
9 October 2007 8 April 2008 8.77 years 0.368 2,041 2,378
“ZTHE+HANE  to 8 October 2017 8.774F
ZEZNFOANBE
—E—tF+ANH
9 October 2007 8 October 2008 8.77 years 0.368 4,082 4,755
—ZET+E+TANE  to 8 October 2017 8.774F
—EEN\FETANRZE
“Z—+HF+ANH
9 October 2007 8 October 2009 8.77 years 0.368 14,287 16,642
“ZETHHFE+TANE to 8 October 2017 8.77%F
—ETAETANRE
—Z—+F+ANH
9 October 2007 8 October 2010 8.77 years 0.368 20,410 23,775
“ZZ+E+HANE  to 8 October 2017 8.774F
“ZT-TF+TANBE
—E—tF+ANH
40,820 47,550
44,000 51,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—FZLNF+-A=1+—HILFE
(UARHBEL)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Cont'd)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

25. BEEBKRE (&)

b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date (Cont’d)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when
employees (which term includes the directors of the
Company) were granted share options over shares
in the Company in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 3(i)(iii) for the Group has taken
advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
paragraph 53 of IFRS 2 under which the recognition
and measurement policies have not been applied
to (i) all options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002. and (ii) all options granted to
employees after 7 November 2002 but which had
vested before 1 January 2005. If the employees chose
to exercise the options, the nominal amount of share
capital and share premium were credited only to the
extent of the option’s exercise price receivable.

26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

b)

REEBZEERRRITEBREZ
"™ (&)

AR 3% B SE3()(ii) P 8 & R BCR Pt -
AEERZBRBERMHRS ERF2
SR R 53B FTE 2 BRGS0 F Ik -
REAEREY MEROR —FFT -
FH—ALtRXZARTEEZMA
BREMMNR -_ZZT_F+—HALH
BERTEEENR-_ZZTRAF—H—H
MERBNMAREE AN BEF
EEREERSEANRAIRN 2B
R ERDEASE - HEREE
BITEBRE BRARKO®ERE
T RRIE A A W AR BB B R 1T (£ (B R PR AT
Ae

26. R KR FIFTE

AEBEREEBRGIIERESEEEH -
RIBBEEBREBRIZEZEEEERS

ST/

Eertdl ([wEestE])  -miEeat

BB BIIEEAETIE Y FREETURAKE
- RERESHE BEXREEESEA
RIEE ZBBRA Z5%EREE AT
A B B A20,0008 70 5 EBR - M st £k
P H-FESREEENE -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZNFFH

99



Notes to the financial statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZLNF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(UAREBEN)

26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (Cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

26. RKBRIFT & (#2)

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC Singlee Software,
Singlee Technology, Singlee Zhuhai and Beijing Century
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes
organized by the relevant local government authorities in
Mainland China. Each employee covered by these schemes
is entitled, after retirement, to a pension payment equal
to the basic salary of the employees as of their retirement
dates. Singlee Software, Singlee Technology, Singlee
Zhuhai and Beijing Century are required to make monthly
contributions to the retirement scheme, up to the time of
retirement of the eligible employees, at 20%, 20%, 10%
and 20% respectively of their basic salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired employees.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contribution as stated above

(2007: Nil).

Details of the pension contributions made by the Group,

e BRI ERGIFTRT B8R - AEE R E
P2 B R M B F AR B
Mixghit Rttt E2RBAPEBE R
TR R 2 TR HETRKE S
2MZERREEEZEENEREZATK
HEREERARBERTE ZRIKNS < 5 H
B AR FMERE R R R
BERAABREEARNTE 220% 20%
10% % 20% 7 BIE S A FR K S 5 8I1E D
W INEREZEFTRHARBLIT K
FEas-

RZBEENF+_A=+—"H B LR
KREEPIINEREETEEMERSE (=
TR F E) o

RARER AEEREERAKSFTE ZH

which have been dealt with in the consolidated results HEFAGEKEEERN EFBUT:
of operations of the Group for the current year, were as
follows:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Contributions to retirement RKERETEIER
benefits scheme 660 945

100 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE



Notes to the financial statements
Bt 7% R 3k MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ—FZLNF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBEN)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash

equivalents, trade and other receivables. The Group's

financial liabilities include bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables.

The Group does not have nor has issued financial

instruments for trading purposes. Exposure to credit,

interest, liquidity and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business. These risks are limited by

the Group’s financial management policies and practices

described below.

a)

b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. The Group does not require collateral
in respect of financial assets.

At the balance sheet date, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to fair value and cash flow
interest risks is normal. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk related to its loans and borrowings.
In order to minimise the risks, management has
closely monitored the exposures.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group's bank borrowings are disclosed in note 20.

27. &R T A

AEBZeREERRAS LR EE
) FEWCE B R M b EUERIR - AN SR E
ZeMABERRBRRTREMER ENE
5 Bk B B JE AN RIR o

AEBYEXBTERIANEES R
B AKEERFEEBEARTARESZR
R BREERR FXRER RBHES
R M ERER - AKERR T XA
MBEREBEMEPIRERRER -

a)

b)

FERR

AEBEZEERRTZHREWEHR
AR EMERFIERR EEERE
TREZEERR IHEEREH
FEHzEERR AEESHME
EPMBETREEEETEREN
B AEEERZYHEERBRN

on °

REER FERARZESECRE
ERERTREMBEEZREES
Jle- AEBYEENSEEFEER

B o
) 2= @ b

AEBEZRAFERBESRENXRE
REBLEEREE AEBREERME
NN R R R B S s s
K R EYEREHAR-

AEBFRITERZHERERFHR
M EF201EH 2= -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZNFFH

101



Notes to the financial statements

B 7% ¥R R P A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z—ZF

FNFFT A= —HAIFE

102

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UABRERBEN)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

)

d)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company's board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Foreign currency risk

A substantial-portion of the Group’s revenue-
generating operations and its expenses are transacted
in Renminbi. Renminbi is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the
People’s Bank of China (“"PBOC") or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
PBOC. On 21 July 2005, with the authorisation from
the PRC government, the PBOC announced that the
PRC government reformed the exchange rate regime
by moving into a managed floating exchange rate
regime based on market supply and demand with
reference to a basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance
of earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the
availability of foreign currency (which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the
Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with
government approval.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #F&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

27. 8/ T E (£)

)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KAREBE)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective fair values
as at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate their fair values
because of the short maturities of these items.

(ii) Loans and borrowings

The carrying amount of loans and borrowings
approximates their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for loans and
borrowings with similar terms and maturities.

Economic risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected by
significant political, economic and social uncertainties
in the PRC. Although the Government of the People's
Republic of China (“PRC Government”) has been
pursuing economic reform policies for the past years,
no assurance can be given that the PRC Government
will continue to pursue such policies or that such
policies may not be significantly altered.

Business risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s operations is
conducted in the PRC. This includes risks associated
with, among others, the political, economic and legal
environment in the PRC.

Liquidity risks
The Group maintains a prudent financial policy and

ensures that it maintains sufficient cash resources to
meet its liquidity requirements.

e)

f)

9)

h)

27. €I R (4#)

“EENFR-FFLET A
St EAYMBAERAMZE
EWBREE 2 AFE

() BERATZEY BERESK
HREMENFBEENEZ R
HRAMENFKE

HRZUEFEE ZHHARE
FZRMENSERFE.

(i) BFREH

ERREREEENSBER
EAEAMEALFHLIHARUZ
ERRERRBZEE R X
HZRFE-

78 R By

AEBEEBAZTEZERBUR &
BRHETHARREMEETE -
A E ARKMBEBAT (THBEBAT])
EBE-BEHITRENERE HE
SEIR RS R B R S A AR B B R B
SBEBEBRTEKIEEH-

E 300
AEBMARODEBHHET BT 1
BREZER (ERRY)PEZBUE
B NORBIRE -

RBESRER
AEERSHFEBR IV BRE I

RRAGH R RR TR IED
AEBAE-
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(Expressed

(KAREBE)

in Renminbi)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks
the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term
fluctuations on the Group's loss. Over the longer
term, however, permanent changes in foreign
exchange and interest rates would have an impact
on consolidated loss. At 31 December 2008, it is
estimated that a general decrease of one percentage
point in interest rates would affect the Group's (loss)/
profit before taxation by approximately RMB168,000
being decrease in loss (2007: RMB252,000 being
increase in profit) so far as the effect on interest-
bearing financial instruments is concerned.

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material related party transactions during the

year.

Key

management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including

amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in

note

10, is as follows:

27. 8RR IT B (#)

HREDN

AEEREEMNERIMNERKR 2 B H
TR EEB A RE Y 2 MR BF
& REME  SNERF KRR Z KA
EHHUEaBRRELARE - R_F
ENF+_A=+t—B BaEN=E
ERTHR e EHHAEER
THERFZEZBERAT UAREE
ZBEA (B1E) BN ZFEROA
K#168,000t 2 BEED (ZTF L
F: AR¥252,0007T 2 % A& M) -

28. EXBBERFRS

BEWBRREMBOMBEREZZER

2Rk

RN AEBERNET T EKNE

B S

TEEEEAEME

TEEEEAEMENT HPBHEN
FTARRRES ZHIA (RME10HKE) -

The Group
KEE

2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AEREFT

Short-term employee benefits EHEEERF 1,754 1,655

Retirement scheme contributions RIRFTEIHE 3R 51 82

Total ait 1,805 1,737
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note e @mEN B IRA] (ZH78)E

8).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ-ZFZL/NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) — (MUA R 5E )

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. IREHEAE
At 31 December 2008, the Group had total future RZEENF+ZA=1+—H REBH
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating WMEZ AR REKEEERLY  AEEA
lease in respect of premises as follows: RAREZ Nz HEHSBENT
a) As lessor a) EAHEA
The Group leases out part of its leased properties AEERERBLEHEERR 2H S
under operating lease. The leases typically run for an WA - —ARIRER - FHA) 2 ¥ F A
initial period of one year, with an option to renew R WM BEERANENER
the lease after that date at which all terms are FTBEGRZ ABREERLN - ZEFHL
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent MEREXAES -
rentals.
At 31 December 2008, the Group’s total future R-ZEZNF+_A=+—H RIE
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable NI HEECEHERLY  NEER R
operating lease are as follows: REWK 2 RIEBESBENAT
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Within one year —F K - 35
b) As lessee b) #EAEMEA
At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum RZZZNF+ZA=T—H8 RE
lease payables under non-cancellable operating lease TAREHE LA ER AN K RER 2
are as follows: EMESEREET -
The Group The Company
A&EE b NS
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT  ARBTZ ARKTIL

Within one year —&R 489 363 - -

After one year but within five ~ —F#BERFR
years 163 - - -
652 363 - -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

29.

30.

31.

32.

(KARBBEL)
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Contd)

b) As lessee (Cont’d)

The leases typically run for an initial period of six
months to three years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated
and reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation. The directors consider that it would better
reflect the substance of the underlying transactions.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2008,
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of

the directors consider the

the Group to be Goldcorp Industrial Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does
not produce financial statements available for public use.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

a) Impairment for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the
customers to make the required payments. The Group
bases the estimates on the aging of the accounts
receivable balance, customer credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the customers’
financial position were to deteriorate, actual write-

offs would be higher than estimated.
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(KAREBE)

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

b)

Impairment for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book value of a
non-current asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”. The carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed periodically in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the
asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to level of
sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sale volume, selling
price and amount of operating costs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AANBRERBEN)

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

9}

d)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

If the costs of inventories fall below their net
realisable values, a provision for diminution in
value of inventories is recognised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. The Group bases the estimates on all
available information, including the current market
prices of the finished goods and raw materials, and
historical operating costs. If the actual selling prices
were to be lower or the costs of completion and other
distribution costs were to be higher than estimated,
the actual provision for diminution in value of
inventories could be higher than estimated.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on
all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance
of the particular legal entity or tax group in which
the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering
whether there is convincing evidence that it is
probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence
of taxable temporary differences, group relief,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred taxation and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.
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